
 
REGULAR PIQUA CITY COMMISSION MEETING 

  TUESDAY, JUNE 4, 2013 
7:30 P.M. – COMMISSION CHAMBER – 2nd FLOOR 

201 WEST WATER STREET 
PIQUA, OHIO   45356 

 
 CALL TO ORDER 
 
 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 ROLL CALL  
 

JOINT MEETING OF WASHINGTON TOWNSHIP TRUSTEES 
 

CONSENT AGENDA  
 

1. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Approval of the minutes from the May 7, 2013 Joint Meeting with Washington Township Trustees 
and Piqua City Commission 

 
2. RES. NO. R-82-13 

A Resolution renewing a tax levy in excess of the ten-mill limitation for maintenance and operating 
the Forest Hill Union Cemetery    
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

 
 PRESENTATION:  I LOVE PIQUA VIDEO AWARD WINNERS 

 1st Place – Riley Branson 
 2nd Place – Elizabeth Ann Butt 
 3rd Place – Jared & Justin Younce 

 
RECOGNITION:   BIKE TO WORK WEEK IN THE CITY OF PIQUA 

 
              REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 

   
CONSENT AGENDA 

 
1. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

Approval of the minutes from the May 21, 2013 Regular City Commission Meeting  
 

2. RES. NO. R-83-13 
A Resolution of Appreciation for the Public Service of Donald Larger as a City Employee 
 

3. RES. NO. R-84-13 
A Resolution of Appreciation for the Public Service of Bret Reid as a City Employee 

 
4. RES. NO. R-85-13 

A Resolution of Appreciation for the Public Service of Steve Cantrell as a City Employee 
 

 NEW BUSINESS 
 

5. ORD.NO. 7-13 (1st Reading) 
An Ordinance to authorize the annexation of contiguous territory owned by the Municipal  
Corporation and the State 



 2

 
  

6. ORD. NO. 8-13 (1st Reading) 
An Ordinance enacting and adopting a supplement to the Code of Ordinances for the City of Piqua 
 

7. RES. NO. R-86-13 
A Resolution awarding a contract to Pohlkat Inc. in the amount not to exceed $150,000 annually for 
removal and disposal of lime residual from the Lime Lagoon at the Water Plant for 2013 - 2015 

 
8. RES. NO. R-87-13 

A Resolution authorizing a purchase order to Southeastern Equipment Co., Inc. for the purchase of  
a backhoe for the Public Works Department 

 
9. RES. NO. R-88-13 

A Resolution fixing the time and place for a Public Hearing on the proposed City Tax Budget for  
Miami County for the Calendar Year 2014 and Draft Appropriation Ordinance 
 

10. RES. NO. R-89-13 
A Resolution requesting authorization to enter into an agreement with Strand Associates, Inc. for  
the site selection, design, permitting, and construction engineering for a new 1.0 million gallon  
elevated water storage tower 

 
11. RES. NO. R-90-13 

A Resolution awarding a contract for the purchase of a refuse packer truck for the Sanitation 
Department 
 

12. RES. NO. R-91-13 
A Resolution awarding a contract to HD Supply Power Solutions for the purchase of material for 
the Power System 

 
13. RES. NO. R-92-13 

A Resolution authorizing a purchase order to Horton Emergency Vehicles Company for the  
purchase of a medic for the Fire Department 

 
14. RES. NO. R-93-13 

A Resolution authorizing the Law Director to petition the Board of County Commissioners of 
Miami County, Ohio for a change in the boundary lines of Washington Township 

 
15. RES. NO. R-94-13 

A Resolution authorizing the execution of a loan agreement with Vestco, LTD., in the amount 
of $30,000 
 

 
 PUBLIC COMMENT 

(This is an opportunity for citizens to address the City Commission regarding issues or to provide  
information.  Comments are requested to be limited to five (5) minutes and specific questions  
should be addressed to the City Manager’s office.) 
 
OTHER 
 
CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

 COMMISSIONERS COMMENT 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 



MINUTES 
PIQUA CITY COMMISSION/WASHINGTON TOWNSHIP  

TUESDAY, MAY 7, 2013 
7:30 P.M. 

 
       Piqua City Commission met at 7:30 P.M. in the Municipal Government Complex Commission 
Chambers located at 201 W. Water Street.  Mayor Fess called the meeting to order.  Also present were 
Commissioners Martin, Vogt, Terry, Wilson, and Washington Township Trustees McMaken, Hiegel, and 
Holfinger. Absent: None. 
 

JOINT MEETING WITH WASHINGTON TOWNSHIP TRUSTEES 
 

 Consent Agenda 
Approval of the minutes from the January 15, 2013 Joint Meeting of the Washington Township      
Trustees and Piqua City Commission. 
 
Moved by Trustee Hiegel, seconded by Commissioner Martin to approve the minutes of the Joint 
Meeting of the Washington Township Trustees and the Piqua City Commission.  Voice vote, Aye: 
Martin, Wilson, Terry, Vogt, Fess, Hiegel, McMaken, and Holfinger. Nay, None. Motion carried 
unanimously. 

     
       NEW BUSINESS 
 
       RES. NO. R-60-13 
       A Resolution declaring the intention to levy a tax in excess of the ten mill limitation and requesting the    

 Auditor of Miami County Ohio certification pursuant to Ohio Revised Codes 5705.03. 
 

Law Director Stacy Wall stated the amount of taxes which may be raised within the ten mill limitation 
will be insufficient to provide an adequate amount for the necessary requirements of the Forest Hill 
Union Cemetery, and that it is necessary to levy a tax in excess of such limitation for the purpose of 
the operation and maintenance of the Cemetery pursuant to Ohio Revised Code Section 5705.19 (T) 
and it is the intention to levy a tax in excess of said limitation.  The purpose of the levy will be for 
funding the operation and maintenance of the Forest Hill Union Cemetery for a period of five years. 
This will be placed on the tax lists and duplicate for the tax years 2015, 2016, 2017, and 2018,  and to 
be first collected in the calendar year 2015, and in 2016, 2017, 2018 and 2019 and will be a renewal 
levy. 
 
 Several questions were raised concerning the original amount of the levy, the increased amount, and 
when the taxes would begin being collected.  Ms. Wall explained. 
   
Moved by Trustee Holfinger, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that Resolution No, R-60-13 be 
adopted. Voice vote, Aye: Hiegel, McMaken, Holfinger, Wilson Vogt, Terry, Martin and Fess. Nay: 
None. Motion carried unanimously.  Mayor Fess declared Resolution No. R-60-13 adopted. 

 
Moved by Trustee Hiegel, seconded by Commissioner Vogt to adjourn from the Joint Meeting with the 
Washington Township Trustees and the Piqua City Commission.  Voice vote, Aye: Vogt, Martin, 
Terry, Fess, Wilson, Holfinger, Hiegel, and McMaken. Nay: None. Motion carried unanimously. 

          
_________________________ 

         PASSED: _______________________    LUCINDA L. FESS. MAYOR 
 
         ATTEST: ________________________ 
                        REBECCA J. COOL 
                        CERK OF COMMISSION 



 
 
 

                                      RESOLUTION NO. R-82-13 
 

                         A RESOLUTION RENEWING A TAX LEVY IN 
                         EXCESS OF THE TEN- MILL LIMITATION FOR 
                         MAINTENANCE AND OPERATING THE FOREST 

       HILL UNION CEMETERY 
 
 
 WHEREAS, by a joint Resolution No. C-6465, this Commission and the 
Washington Township Board of Trustees resolved to contribute funds from a 
proposed tax levy towards the maintenance and operation of Forest Hill Union 
Cemetery, as permitted by Sections 759.30 and 759.34 of the Ohio Revised Code; 
and 

WHEREAS, such continued contribution is solely conditioned upon the 
passage of a tax levy in excess of the ten mill limitation pursuant to Section 5705.19 
(T) of the Ohio Revised Code; and 

 
WHEREAS, the amount of taxes which may be raised within this ten mill 

limitation will be insufficient to provide an adequate amount for the necessary 
requirements of the Forest Hill Union Cemetery jointly owned by the City of Piqua, 
Ohio and Washington Township; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 

Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, and by the Board of Trustees of Washington Township, 
Miami County, Ohio, a majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 

 
SEC. 1: It is necessary to renew a tax levy, currently imposed at a rate 

of 0.5 mills for each dollar of valuation, in excess of the ten mill limitation for the 
benefit of the City of Piqua, Ohio, and Washington Township for the purpose of 
maintenance and operation of Forest Hill Union Cemetery at a rate not exceeding 0.5 
mills for each one dollar of valuation, which amounts to five cents for each one 
hundred dollars of valuation for a period of five years. 

 
SEC. 2: Said renewal levy shall be placed upon the tax list of the 

current year after February settlement next succeeding election and shall be 
effective commencing January 2014 for a period of five years (2014, 2015, 2016, 
2017 and 2018) to be first collected in the calendar year of 2015, and to be collected 
in the calendar years 2016, 2017, 2018 and 2019, which proposed levy shall be a 
RENEWAL levy, if a majority of the electors voting thereon vote in favor thereof; 

 
SEC. 3: The Clerk of this Commission is hereby authorized and 

directed to certify a copy of this Resolution to the Board of Elections of Miami 
County, Ohio, prior to August 7, 2013 and to notify said Board of Elections to cause 
notice of election to be held on Tuesday, November 5, 2013, on the questions of 
levying said tax to be given as required by law. 

 
 



SEC. 4: The ballot title for the renewal tax levy in excess of the ten-mill 
limitation for maintenance and operating the Forest Hill Union Cemetery shall read: 

 
PROPOSED TAX LEVY 

(RENEWAL) 
FOREST HILL UNION CEMETERY 

 
A majority affirmative vote is necessary for passage 

 
A renewal of a tax for the benefit of the Forest Hill Union Cemetery for the purpose of 
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE OF THE CEMETERY at a rate not exceeding 
0.5 mill for each one dollar of valuation, which amounts to $0.05 for each one 
hundred dollars of valuation, for 5 years, commencing in 2014, first due in calendar 
year 2015. 
 
FOR THE TAX LEVY  ___________ 
 
AGAINST THE TAX LEVY ___________ 

 
 

 SEC. 4: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
      __________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
PASSED:   ____________________   
 
ATTEST:    ____________________   
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 
 
 
      WASHINGTON TOWNSHIP TRUSTEES 
       
      ________________________________ 
       
      ________________________________ 
 
      ________________________________ 
 
       
       



 1

 
MINUTES 

PIQUA CITY COMMISSION 
Tuesday May 21, 2013 

7:30 P.M. 
 
Piqua City Commission met at 7:30 P.M. in the Municipal Government Complex Commission 
Chambers located at 201 W. Water Street. Mayor Fess called the meeting to order.  Also present 
were Commissioners Martin, Terry, Vogt, and Wilson.  Absent: None. 
 
Presentation:  (Postponed) 
 
State Presentation for Eagle Scout Award: 
Presented by: State Representative Richard Adams 
 

REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
     Consent Agenda 

 
     Approval of the minutes from the May 7, 2013 Regular Piqua City Commission Meeting. 

 
     RES. NO. R-73-13 
     A Resolution authorizing preliminary legislation with the Ohio Department of Transportation for the 
     Pier patching and abutment on various bridges within the City of Piqua 
 
    Resolution No. R-74-13    
    A Resolution authorizing preliminary legislation with the Ohio Department of Transportation for the       
    rebuilding of the two signalized ramp intersections with mast arms on US Route 36, Section 11.69     
 

Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Terry, to approve the Consent  
    Agenda.  Voice vote, Aye: Wilson, Vogt, Martin, Fess, and Terry.  Nay: None.  Motion carried 
    unanimously.   

 
NEW BUSINESS 

 
    ORD. NO. 6-13 
    An Ordinance authorizing an amendment to Ordinance No. 42-96 and the zoning map attached   
    thereto to change the zoning designation of Parcel N44-076500 to I-2 (Heavy Industrial) 
 

Chris Schmiesing, City Planner, stated this item was presented to the Piqua Planning Commission 
at the request of the property owner to change the zoning designation of the property from OS 
Open Space to I-2 Heavy Industrial. The Planning Commission held a public meeting on May 14, 
2013 and the property owner explained he would like to accommodate a building expansion related 
to the adjacent and contiguous industrial use of the premises.  
 
The improvements at this location currently include a gravel parking area that supports the adjacent 
banquet facility.  The applicant stated the adjacent banquet facility will continue to benefit from the 
available parking provided at the subject premises. After review of the proposed zoning change it 
was unanimously recommended for approval by the four Planning Commission members present, 
stated Mr. Schmiesing. 
 
Commissioner Vogt stated he would like to waive the three reading rule at this time.  Law Director 
Stacy Wall explained the reasons that apply to waiving the three reading rule. 
 
Law Director Wall read Section 12 of the Piqua Charter stating the reasons that must apply to the 
waiving of the three reading rule.  
 
 
 



 2

Public Comment 
 
William Coomer, 1502 S. Main Street, the applicant came forward and asked if it would be possible 
to waive the three reading rule at this time. Mr. Coomer indicated he would like to proceed with the 
improvements and the construction of a new building as soon as possible.  Mr. Coomer further 
explained he needs the additional space for the equipment that is coming soon, and with the new 
equipment comes new jobs for the community also 

 
Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded, by Commissioner Martin, to amend Ordinance No. 6-13 
to allow the   waiving of the three reading rule at this time, due to the circumstances explained by 
the applicant. Roll call, Aye: Terry, Martin, Wilson, Fess, and Vogt. Nay: None. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Martin, that Ordinance No. 6-13 be 
adopted as amended.  Roll call, Aye: Vogt, Terry, Martin, Fess, and Wilson. Nay: None. Motion 
carried unanimously.  Mayor Fess then declared Ordinance No.6-13 adopted. 

 
    RES. NO. R- 75-13 

A Resolution amending the total payment to Physio-Control for the purchase of an additional one-
year service agreement, spare batteries, monitors paper and adapters 
 
Fire Chief, Mike Rindler stated in July of 2012 the Fire Department submitted a Federal AFG Grant 
request to replace two heart Monitor/Defibrillators that will soon be outdated, and the grant was 
approved in December 2012. The Federal Grant will be providing 90% of the funding and the City of 
Piqua is responsible for the remaining 10%.  The AFG Administration prefers the funding awarded 
be 100% used.  This additional service agreement and equipment purchased will match the 
awarded amount from the AFG grant for a total of $55,606.00, said Chief Rindler.  
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-75-13. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Wilson, that Resolution No. R-75-13 be 
adopted.  Roll call, Aye: Terry, Martin, Fess, Wilson, and Vogt. Nay: None. Motion carried 
unanimously. Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-75-13 adopted. 

 
    RES. NO. R-76-13 

A Resolution awarding a contract to Speedway LLC for the City-Wide Fuel Purchasing Program for 
the years 7/1/13-6/30/16 
 
Finance Director/Assistant City Manager Cynthia Holtzapple, explained the City of Piqua has been 
purchasing fuel, gasoline and diesel, from Speedway, LLC for the last nine years and is currently 
doing so.  The current contract expires on June 20, 2013, with the current cost being $.08 over 
wholesale prices.  Bid packets were properly advertised and mailed on April 1, 2013 to all gas 
stations located within the city limits, and bids were due by April 24, 2013. Only two bids were 
received and Speedway LLC was awarded the bid.   
 
Several questions were asked concerning the pricing and the billing and how the prices would be 
verified.  Ms. Holtzapple explained. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-76-13. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Martin, that Resolution No. R-76-13 be 
adopted. Roll call, Aye: Martin, Fess, Wilson, Vogt, and Terry. Nay: None.  Motion carried 
unanimously.  Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-76-13 adopted. 
 

    RES. NO. R-77-13 
A Resolution authorizing the sale of City owned real estate 



 3

 
Commissioner Wilson stated due to a conflict of interest he would like to recuse himself from the 
discussion and voting of Resolution No. R-77-13. 
 
Ed Krieger, Power System Director, provided a brief explanation on both Resolution R-77-13 and R-
78-13.  During the construction of the new Power System Service Center, two small adjustments 
were made to the new west fence line in order to minimize the impact to the neighboring property, 
owned by Mr. Hemm.  These minor adjustments did not impact the Power System’s facility design, 
but allowed the neighboring property to maintain the existing traffic flow around his lake. In return, 
Mr. Hemm agreed to allow the City to put in a much needed utility easement on his property north of 
the Power System Service Center. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-77-13. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Martin, to approve Resolution No. R-
77-13.  Roll call, Aye: Fess, Vogt, Terry, and Martin.  Nay: None.  Motion carried unanimously. 

    Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-77-13 adopted. 
 

    RES. NO. R-78-13 
A Resolution granting a utility easement to the City of Piqua to run with the land 
 
Power System Director Ed Krieger provided information previously. 
 
Mr. Krieger announced the Power System will hold an Open House on Thursday, May 23, 2013 at 
the Service Center from 2:00 P.M. to 7:00 P.M. and encouraged citizens to stop in and take a tour 
of the new state of the art facility. 
 
Public Comment 

 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-78-13. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Martin, that Resolution No. R-78-13 be 
adopted. Roll call, Aye:  Vogt, Terry, Martin, and Fess.   Nay: None. Motion carried unanimously. 
Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-78-13 adopted. 

 
     RES. NO. R-79-13 

A Resolution recinding Resolution No. R-108-10 and enacting new preliminary consent legislation 
with the Ohio Department of Transportation for work on the MIA-36-11.34 Bridge over the Great 
Miami River within the City of Piqua 
 
Amy Havenar, City Engineer explained Resolution No. R-108-10 was approved on September 21, 
2010 to allow for the programming of the improvements to the MIA-36-11.34 Bridge by ODOT. This 
project included the rehabilitation of deteriorated back walls, expansion joints, and approach slabs, 
including the necessary structural steel repairs on the structure located on E. Ash Street over the 
Great Miami River.  Since that time, ODOT has revised the scope of work to include the following: 
overlay the bridge deck, reface/patch parapet, seal median joint, refurbish & reset abutment 
bearings, various structural steel repairs and various bridge items.  ODOT is requesting the City 
rescind the previous Resolution (R-108-10) and approve the current Resolution R-79-13.  ODOT 
required permission of the local entity prior to commencement of work within the entities corporation 
limits on all projects.  There is no financial participation required of the city for completion of this 
project, as all construction costs will be incurred by ODOT, stated Ms. Havenar. 
 
Several questions were raised on revising the Resolution.  Law Director Stacy Wall explained. 
 
 
 



 4

Public Comment 
 

No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-79-13 
 

Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Wilson, that Resolution No. R-79-13 be 
adopted. Roll call, Aye: Vogt, Terry, Martin, Fess, and Wilson.   Nay: None. Motion carried 
unanimously. Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-79-13 adopted. 

 
    RES. NO. R-80-13 

A Resolution requesting final legislation to enter into an agreement with the Ohio Department of 
Transportation for the College Street Corridor Traffic Signal Project 
 
Amy Havenar, City Engineer explained in 2011 the City Commission passed a resolution 
authorizing the City Manager to enter into a preliminary agreement with ODOT, and the City has 
engaged a consultant to begin the detailed design for the College Street Corridor Traffic Signal 
Project.  The project will consist of upgrading the traffic signals at College and Water and College 
and Covington Avenue to include signal coordination, the installation of emergency preemption, 
converting the signal operations from pre-timed to actuated, the installation of ADA compliant curb 
ramps, and replacement of the existing traffic signals with mast arm poles. 
 
The City has received funding from the Federal Highway Administration through the Miami Valley 
Regional Planning Commission for 80% of the project costs, up to the maximum amount of 
$421,462.  The bids are not in yet for this project, the estimated cost for our local portion of the 
project is approximately $67,000 (including a 10% contingency). If the actual bids come in higher 
than the estimated amount the local share will increase, or if the bids come in lower than the 
estimate our portion will decrease, stated Ms. Havenar. 
 
There was discussion of the construction time, the grant amount, and how the signals are controlled 
and by whom.  A question was raised concerning the resurfacing of some of the streets. All 
questions were answered. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-80-13. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Vogt, that Resolution No. R-80-13 be 
adopted. Roll call, Aye: Terry, Martin, Fess, Wilson, and Vogt.   Nay: None. Motion carried 
unanimously. Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-80-13 adopted. 
 

    RES. NO. R-81-13  
A Resolution approving CDM-Smith be retained for Engineering Services for all phases of the 
Wastewater Treatment Plant through the completion of the Wastewater Treatment Plant and 
approving a contract for the preliminary engineering report 
 
Dave Davis, Wastewater Superintendent provided information regarding the Sanitary Sewer 
Overflow (SSO), and the reason for the additional legislation at this time. 
 
Bob Yoxthimer, a representative from CDM provided further information regarding the need for the 
revised Facility Plan which calls for a Preliminary Engineering Report (PER) that must be approved 
by the EPA before any formal design can begin on the plant improvements. 
 
Discussion of the need for the revised resolution, what SSO is and how it affects the Wastewater 
Treatment Plant, and the size of the pipes needed to move the SSO. All questions were fully 
explained by Mr. Davis and Mr. Yoxthimer. 
 
Public Comment 

 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-81-13 



 5

 
Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Vogt, that Resolution No. R-81-13 be 
adopted. Roll call, Aye: Martin, Fess, Wilson, Vogt, and Terry.   Nay: None. Motion carried 
unanimously. Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-81-13 adopted. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
This is an opportunity for citizens to address the City Commission regarding issues or to provide           
information.  Comments are requested to be limited to five (5) minutes and specific questions 
should be addressed to the City Manager’s office. 

      
    No one came forward to speak at this time. 
   
    Commissioners Comment 
 

Commissioner Vogt reminded citizens to help raise funds for Pitsenbarger Park, and to think of 
William Pitsenbarger when making their donation for the much needed improvements.  
Commissioner Vogt further stated he received a telephone call from Corky Attenwiller, Director of 
the Piqua Leisure Club.  Ms. Attenweiller stated she felt it was a very worthwhile project, and she 
herself would match any amount the club donated.  The club emptied their treasury, and Ms. 
Attenwiller matched their amount. The Friends of the Piqua Parks received a very nice donation 
from the Piqua Leisure Club. 
 
Commissioner Vogt stated if everyone donated $10 they would be able to reach their goal.  
Commissioner Vogt gave the Finance Director $20 stating this is from his wife and he to get the 
fund started, and asked the rest of the Commissioners to do the same.  
 
Commissioner Martin thanked all the volunteers who came out to help with the City-wide Clean up, 
stating it was very successful due to all of the volunteers. Commissioner Martin thanked 
Ginghamsburg Church for all the help then sent up to help with the Clean Up. 
 
Commissioner Terry stated the Taste of the Arts held on Friday, May 17 was very successful even 
with the heavy rains that came about half way through the evening.  Commissioner Terry thanked 
all the volunteers, and the group from Ginghamsburg Church that came up to help with the 
Cleanup.  Commissioner Terry thanked the Southview Neighborhood Group for the dedication of 
the new facilities at Mote Park, and playground, and for providing lunch for the Clean Up volunteers. 
Commissioner Wilson stated the Taste of Arts was great even with the rain.  The Clean Up Day was 
wonderful and thanking the group from out of town that came to help with the Clean Up. 
Commissioner Wilson reminded citizens to mow their lawns and to pick up any trash they see laying 
around their neighborhoods. 

 
    Mayor Fess stated she will be donating $10 to the Friends of the Piqua Parks.  The Taste of the Arts 
    was a great event with a record turnout this year.  Thanks to the efforts of Lorana Swisher and  
   Cheryl Stiefel-Francis the event was very successful. The dedication of the Mote Park Facilities and 
    playground equipment that took place on Saturday, May 18, 2013, further stating this was all made  
    possible by the many volunteers. 
 
     Mayor Fess stated she was out at the Industrial Spring Company a new company located on 
     County Road 25-A, further stating they are very pleased to be in Piqua, and very complimentary     
     of the employees they have hired. 
 
    Mayor Fess announced National Skateboard Day will be celebrated on June 21, 2013, with various   
    events planned for that day at Pitsenbarger Skate Park.   Mayor Fess thanked Rich Donnelly for 
    generously providing the funding for the wonderful new facility.  
 
 
 
 



 6

    City Managers Report 
      
   City Manager Gary Huff introduced Janel Howery Ranly, an intern working with the City of 
   Piqua this summer.  Janel is a graduate of the first Piqua Government Academy Class. Janel will  
   Graduate from Wright State University in August, and would like to work in City Government, stated  
   City Manager Huff. 
 
   City Manager Huff thanked all of the volunteers who came out to help with the City Wide Clean Up 
   Day, and also thanked Bill Lutz for organizing and working so hard to make this project a success. 
 

WOTVC held a very successful Golf Tournament Fund Raiser on Friday May 17, 2013 raising about  
$3300.00, which goes for station operations.   The Piqua Municipal Swimming Pool is scheduled to 
open on Saturday, May 25, 2013 weather permitting.  City Manager Huff also reminded citizen the 
City Offices would be closed on Monday, May 27, 2013 in observance of Memorial Day. 
 
City Manager Huff announced the City of Piqua recently received a $400,000 Grant from the EPA for 
Brownfield Assessments.  The City also received previously grants from the CDC and the State of 
Ohio combining those efforts for redevelopment of our Brownfield areas. 
 
City Manager Huff reminded citizens of the Power System Open House on Thursday, May 23, 2013 
from 2:00 P.M. – 7:00 P.M. 
 
City Manager Huff announced there are several Board openings that include: the Community 
Diversity Board one opening; Income Tax Review Board has one opening; Energy Board has one 
opening; and the Stormwater Utility Board has one opening. Anyone interested in serving on any of 
these boards should contact the City Manager’s Office.  
 
Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Martin, to adjourn from the Regular  

   Piqua City Commission Meeting at 8:20 P.M.  Voice vote, Aye: Terry, Wilson, Fess, Martin, and  
   Vogt. Nay: None.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 
                  
       ______________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR   
PASSED: ______________________   
 
ATTEST: _______________________ 
         REBECCA J. COOL 
        CLERK OF COMMISSION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
                                                  RESOLUTION NO. R-83-13 
 

 
 A RESOLUTION OF APPRECIATION FOR THE 

                                         PUBLIC SERVICE OF DONALD LARGER 
       AS A CITY EMPLOYEE 

 
 
 WHEREAS, Donald Larger has retired as Firefighter/Paramedic with the Fire 
Department; and 
 
 WHEREAS, his retirement follows 25 years of faithful and dedicated service to the 
City and its citizens; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, 
Miami County, Ohio, all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: In recognition and appreciation of the public service of  
Donald Larger as Firefighter/Paramedic with the Fire Department, this Commission 
tenders its unanimous and respectful tribute by this Resolution, which shall be a matter of 
public and permanent record. 
 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after the 
earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
      _____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
      
PASSED:  ________________________ 
 
ATTEST:   ________________________ 
       REBECCA J. COOL 
                 CLERK OF COMMISSION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
                                                  RESOLUTION NO. R-84-13 
 

 
 A RESOLUTION OF APPRECIATION FOR THE 

                                               PUBLIC SERVICE OF BRET REID 
        AS A CITY EMPLOYEE 

 
 
 WHEREAS, Bret Reid has retired as Associate Engineer with the Power System; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, his retirement follows over 30 years of faithful and dedicated service 
to the City and its citizens; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, 
Miami County, Ohio, all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: In recognition and appreciation of the public service of Bret Reid 
as Associate Engineer with the Power System, this Commission tenders its unanimous 
and respectful tribute by this Resolution, which shall be a matter of public and permanent 
record. 
 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after the 
earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
      _____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
      
PASSED:  ________________________ 
 
ATTEST:   ________________________ 
       REBECCA J. COOL 
                 CLERK OF COMMISSION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
                                                  RESOLUTION NO. R-85-13 
 

 
 A RESOLUTION OF APPRECIATION FOR THE 

                                         PUBLIC SERVICE OF STEVE CANTRELL 
        AS A CITY EMPLOYEE 

 
 
 WHEREAS, Steve Cantrell has retired as Police Officer with the Police 
Department; and 
 
 WHEREAS, his retirement follows over 23 years of faithful and dedicated service 
to the City and its citizens; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, 
Miami County, Ohio, all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: In recognition and appreciation of the public service of  
Steve Cantrell as Police Officer with the Police Department, this Commission tenders its 
unanimous and respectful tribute by this Resolution, which shall be a matter of public and 
permanent record. 
 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after the 
earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
      _____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
      
PASSED:  ________________________ 
 
ATTEST:   ________________________ 
       REBECCA J. COOL 
                 CLERK OF COMMISSION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 7-13 
AN ORDINANCE TO AUTHORIZE THE ANNEXATION OF CONTIGUOUS 
TERRITORY OWNED BY THE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION AND THE 
STATE 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Piqua and State of Ohio own territory 

contiguous to the limits of the municipal corporation, as described by Exhibit 
‘A’ and shown in Exhibit ‘B’, hereinafter referred to as the territory; and,  

WHEREAS, the city of Piqua desires to annex the territory in 
anticipation of the construction of a new water treatment facility; and 

WHEREAS, Ohio Revised Code §§ 709.13 through 709.21 provide the 
process for the annexation of municipal and state territory contiguous to the 
municipal corporation; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Commission of the City 
of Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto 
concurring, that: 

SEC. 1: Pursuant to the process of annexation provided for by 
Ohio Revised Code §§ 709.13 through 709.21, this Commission hereby 
authorizes the annexation of the subject property. 

SEC. 2:   The City Manager shall execute the necessary 
annexation petition document. 

SEC. 3: The Law Director shall prosecute the proceedings 
necessary to effect the annexation. 

SEC. 4:   This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and 
after the earliest period allowed by law 

 
            

_____________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
PASSED:   _______________________   
 

ATTEST:    _______________________ 

        REBECCA J. COOL 

                   CLERK OF COMMISSION



 

Item # 5 
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

MEETING DATE June 4, 2013 

REPORT TITLE 
(Match resolution/ordinance title) 

AN ORDINANCE TO AUTHORIZE THE ANNEXATION OF 
CONTIGUOUS TERRITORY OWNED BY THE MUNICIPAL 
CORPORATION AND THE STATE 

SUBMITTED BY Chris Schmiesing, City Planner 

Development Department 

AGENDA CLASSIFICATION Consent Ordinance Resolution Regular 

APPROVALS/REVIEWS City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 

Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 

Utilities Department Director  Planning Commission  

BACKGROUND 
(Description, background, justification) 

This item is in accordance with the Oho Revised Code annexation requirements 
for the annexation of municipally and state owned territory.  Adoption of this 
Ordinance will authorize the filing of an annexation petition to annex City of 
Piqua and State of Ohio properties located near State Route 66 and Hardin 
Road.   

The subject properties owned by the City of Piqua will be the site of a new 
Water Treatment Plan slated to begin construction in 2014.  They State of Ohio 
property included in this annexation represents that portion of the Johnston 
Farm tract that occupies a portion the Hardin Road and State Route 66 highway 
easement area.  The Johnston Farm tract, less that portion in the roadway 
easement area, was previously annexed into the municipal corporation limits.   

BUDGET/FINANCIAL IMPACT 
(Project costs and funding sources) 

Budgeted $:  0 

Expenditure $:  400 +/- 

Source of Funds: Utilities Fund 

Narrative:  There are filing fees and recording fees that will need to be 
satisfied to process and finalize this request. 

OPTIONS 
(Include deny /approval option) 

 

1. Adopt the ordinance to authorize the proposed annexation. 

2. Defeat the ordinance to deny the proposed annexation. 



PROJECT TIMELINE See attached project schedule 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION Authorize the proposed annexation. 

ATTACHMENTS Ordinance (including legal description and map exhibits); Project Schedule 

 



Exhibit ‘A’ 
 

45.503 ACRES 
 
Situated in the Township of Washington, County of Miami, State of Ohio; also being a part of Section 1, 
Town 8, Range 5 East and a part of Section 36, Town 9, Range 5 East and a part of Section 6, Town 6, 
Range 6 East; also being those lands as conveyed to City of Piqua as described in Official Record 225 
Page 484 and Official Record 232 Pages 795 through 818 and a tract of land owned by the City of Piqua 
(the former Piqua Hydraulic Feeder Canal) and a portion of those lands within the rights-of-way of State 
Route 66 (right-of-way varies) and Hardin Road No. 110 (60’ right-of-way) and Hardin Road Alternate 
(60’ right-of-way) and a portion of those lands as conveyed to State of Ohio as described in Deed Book 
426 Page 70; being more particularly described as follows: 
 
Commencing at the northeast corner of Section 1, Town 8, Range 5 East, said point also being along the 
southerly line of Lot 1 of Northwood Hills Subdivision Section One as recorded in Plat Book 10 Page 13, 
said point also being along the northerly line of a 2.6768 acre tract as conveyed to Carl D. & Michele L. 
Hutcherson as described in Official Record 45 Page 453; thence, 
 
Along the division line between Section 1, Town 8, Range 5 East and Section 36, Town 9, Range 5 East, 
also being along the southerly lines of said Lot 1 and then along the southerly line of Lot 21 and then 
along a portion of the southerly line of Lot 22 of Northwood Hills Subdivision Section 2 as recorded in 
Plat Book 10 Page 95, also being along a portion of the northerly line of said 2.6768 acre tract, North 89º 
40’ 39” West for a distance of 367.17’ to a point, said point being the northwesterly corner of said 2.6768 
acre tract, said point also being the TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING, and from said beginning point 
running thence, 
 
Along the westerly line of said 2.6768 acre tract, South 0° 03' 26"East, for a distance of 223.26' to the 
southwesterly corner of said 2.6768 acre tract; thence, 
 
Along the southerly line of said 2.6768 acre tract, North 89° 56' 34"East, for a distance of 471.26' to a 
point along the centerline of Hardin Road No. 110 (60’ right-of-way); thence, 
 
Along the centerline of Hardin Road No. 110, North 30° 02' 53"East, for a distance of 74.47' to a point; 
thence, 
 
Along the centerline of Hardin Road No. 110, North 14° 34' 50"East, for a distance of 160.40' to a point 
along the northerly line of Section 6, Township 6, Range 6 East; thence, 
 
Along the northerly line of said Section 6, South 89° 40' 39"East, for a distance of 30.95' to a point 
along the easterly line of Hardin Road No. 110, said point also being along the division line between the 
City of Piqua and Washington Township; thence the following 8 courses along the easterly right-of-way 
line of Hardin Road No. 110 and the division line between the City of Piqua and Washington Township, 
 
South 14° 34' 50"West, for a distance of 172.10' to a point; thence, 
 
South 30° 02' 53"West, for a distance of 828.21' to a point; thence, 
 
South 33° 23' 13"West, for a distance of 310.44' to a point; thence, 
 
South 31° 28' 33"West, for a distance of 167.15' to a point; thence, 
 
South 18° 18' 04"West, for a distance of 313.51' to a point; thence, 
 



Exhibit ‘A’ 
 
Along a curve to the left, said curve being non-tangent to the previous course, said curve having a radius 
of 3407.75’, an arc length of 213.12’, a central angle of 3º 35’ 00”, and a chord that beard South 16º 
30’ 34” West for a distance of 213.09’ to a point; thence, 
 
South 15° 54' 28"East, for a distance of 48.21' to a point; thence, 
 
South 10° 18' 16"West, for a distance of 207.00' to a point along the northerly right-of-way line of State 
Route No. 66 (right-of-way varies) and along the division line between the City of Piqua and Washington 
Township; thence, 
 
Along the northerly right-of-way line of State Route No. 66, also being along the division line between 
the City of Piqua and Washington Township, South 17° 21' 48"East, for a distance of 473.81' to a point; 
thence, 
 
Along the same, South 24° 38' 18"East, for a distance of 111.95' to a point along a southerly line of a 
162.823 acre tract as conveyed to State of Ohio as described in Deed Book 426 Page 70; thence, 
 
Along a portion of a southerly line of said 162.823 acre tract and then along the extension of said 
southerly line, South 65° 28' 57"West, for a distance of 90.00' to a point along the centerline of State 
Route No. 66; thence, 
 
Along the centerline of State Route No. 66, also being along the division line between the City of Piqua 
and Washington Township starting at a distance of 549.67’ from the beginning of this course, North 24° 
38' 18"West, for a distance of 2243.10' to a point of curvature; thence, 
 
Along the centerline of State Route No. 66, also being along the division line between the City of Piqua 
and Washington Township, following a curve to the left having a radius of 5729.58’, an arc length of 
789.87, a central angle of 7º 53’ 55”, and a chord that bears North 28º 35’ 16” West for a distance of 
789.24’ to a point at the intersection of the centerlines of State Route No. 66 and Hardin Road Alternate; 
thence, 
 
Along the centerline of Hardin Road Alternate, South 54° 09' 29"East, for a distance of 444.05' to a 
point; thence, 
 
Along the centerline of Hardin Road Alternate, South 54° 11' 39"East, for a distance of 289.80' to a 
point, said point being the southeasterly corner of a 1.026 acre tract as conveyed to Warren O. Price, Jr. & 
Marilyn J. Price, Trustees as described in Deed Book 729 Page 233; thence, 
 
Along the easterly line of said 1.026 acre tract, North 1° 09' 46"West, for a distance of 334.79' to a point 
along the southerly line of a 25.078 acre tract as conveyed to John M. & Deborah Owsiniany as described 
in Official Record 284 Page 791, said point also being along the division line between Section 1, Town 8, 
Range 5 East and Section 36, Town 9, Range 5 East; thence, 
 
Along a portion of the southerly line of said 25.0783 acre tract and then along a portion of the southerly 
line of Lot 22 of Northwood Hills Subdivision Section 2, also being along the division line between 
Section 1, Town 8, Range 5 East and Section 36, Town 9, Range 5 East, South 89° 40' 39"East, for a 
distance of 937.26' to the point of beginning containing 45.503 acres of land, more or less, of which 
44.881 acres is in Section 1, Town 8, Range 5 East, 0.549 acres is in Section 6, Town 6, Range 6 East, 
and 0.073 acres is in Section 36, Town 9, Range 5 East; as determined by Michael L. Keller, Professional 
Surveyor, Ohio License No. 7978, based on a survey performed by Kleingers & Associates in June, 2011 



Exhibit ‘A’ 
 
and September, 2012, as filed in Miami County Recorder’s Record of Plats Volume _______ Page 
_______. 
 
Basis of bearings for the above-described courses is the Ohio State Plane Coordinate System, Ohio South 
Zone (NAD83-2007) as determined by a VRS-GPS survey utilizing CORS station “SIDN” as maintained 
by the Ohio Department of Transportation and station “MIA 099”. 
 
Iron pins set are 5/8” diameter rebar, 30” in length, with plastic identifier caps stamped “Kleingers & 
Assoc”. 
 
Subject to any easements, restrictions, covenants, ordinances, or agreements of record. 
 
Legal description prepared by Michael L. Keller, Professional Surveyor, Ohio License No. 7978 



E
xh

ib
it 

‘B
’ 

 

 







                                            ORDINANCE NO. 8-13 
 

AN ORDINANCE ENACTING AND ADOPTING A 
SUPPLEMENT TO THE CODE OF ORDINANCES 
                  FOR THE CITY OF PIQUA 
 

 
WHEREAS, American Legal Publishing Corporation of Cincinnati, Ohio, has  

completed the 2012 supplement to the Code of Ordinances of the City of Piqua, 
which supplement contains all ordinances of a general and permanent nature 
enacted since the prior supplement to the Code of Ordinances of this City of Piqua; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, American Legal Publishing Corporation has recommended the 
revision or addition of certain sections of the Code of Ordinances which are based on 
or make reference to the Ohio Code; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is the intent of the Piqua City Commission to accept these 
updated sections in accordance with the changes of the law of the State of Ohio; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is necessary to provide for the usual daily operation of the City 
of Piqua and for the immediate preservation of the public peace, health, safety and 
general welfare of the City of Piqua that this ordinance take effect at an early date. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, 
that: 
 
 SEC 1:  That the 2012 supplement to the Code of Ordinances of the 
City of Piqua as submitted by American Legal Publishing Corporation of Cincinnati, 
Ohio, is hereby adopted by reference as is set out in its entirety. 
 
 SEC. 2: Such supplement shall be deemed published as of the day of 
its adoption and approval by the Piqua City Commission and the Clerk of 
Commission is hereby authorized and ordered to insert such supplement into the 
copy of the Code of Ordinances kept on file in the Office of the Clerk of Commission. 
 

SEC. 3: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
          

            ________________________ 
LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 

 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 





 

Item # 7
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

 
MEETING DATE 

 

 
June 4, 2013 

 
REPORT TITLE 

 
 

 
A RESOLUTION AWARDING A CONTRACT TO POHLKAT INC. IN THE 
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $150,000 ANNUALLY FOR REMOVAL AND 
DISPOSAL OF LIME RESIDUAL FROM THE LIME LAGOON AT THE 
WATER PLANT FOR 2013-2015 
 

 
SUBMITTED BY 

Name & Title: Don Freisthler, Water Plant Superintendent 
Department: Water 

 
AGENDA CLASSIFICATION 

 

 
Consent 

 
Ordinance 

 
Resolution 

 
Regular 

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 
Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 
Department Director;  Other:  

 
BACKGROUND 

 

 
Pohlkat Inc. has successfully provided this type of service for at least the last 6 
years.  They drag the lime to the side of the lagoon, pump it in semi tankers, 
weigh it and haul to farmers fields.  This service is necessary to keep the lagoon 
from getting too full and overflowing. 
 

 
BUDGETING AND 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 

Budgeted $:  $150,000 for the 2013 year 
Expenditure $:  $150,000 for the 2013 year, Not to Exceed 
Source of Funds: 403-306-655-7553 
Narrative:  The amounts will vary each year depending on the amount 

of lime sludge we ask Pohlkat to remove. At the current 
pricing $31.40 per ton, they will be removing 4,777 dry tons 
annually. 
 
This will allow for removal of 1,500 dry tons of sludge from 
the old pit and 3,277 from the current lagoon 
 
Though Pohlkat was not the lowest bidder for this 3 year 
contract they were chosen to do the project for the following 
reasons; 
 
Synagro wanted to use a calibrated flow meter and not a 
Certified Scale as required in the bid specifications 
 
When references were requested I received bio-solids 
references not Lime sludge 
 



A second reference list was requested for Communities that 
were using Synagro for Lime Sludge hauling. 
 
When I made the phone calls to three of the references 
supplied by Synagro.  
 
Only one City (Dayton) was satisfied with Synagro’s 
performance, they had the same crew since 1994. 
 
Two of the three communities were not satisfied with the 
performance of Synagro. The communities of Washington 
Courthouse & City of Coshocton are newer clients and 
expressed trouble with customer service. 
 
They both had to stay on Synagro to even get them on the 
job, once on the job they did finally get the sludge hauled. 
 
One community had problems with Synagro not wanting to 
perform work, according to the contract requirements. 
 
It was for these reasons that it was decided to stay with 
Pohlkat Inc. They have always hauled our sludge in a timely 
manner to the satisfaction of the City, Farmers, and the site 
neighbors. 
 
 
  

 
OPTIONS 

 

1. Approve Resolution No. R-86-13 as presented. 
2. Approve Resolution No. R-86-13 with changes. 
3. Deny Resolution No. R-86-13 and offer staff an alternative.  If we abandon 

our clean-up efforts, there would not be adequate storage for the lime 
sludge which would cause the lagoon to overflow resulting in possible 
violations, fines and penalties. 

 
 PROJECT TIMELINE 

 
Our new contract would begin on June 20, 2013 and run through December 31, 
2015. 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
 

We have been very happy with Pohlkat’s service to date.  The EPA has been 
very pleased with our progress at this site over the last few years.  We plan to 
continue to budget for this expense each year.  However, our contract will have 
a termination clause if we should choose to exercise it due to financial 
constraints or budgetary changes. 

 
ATTACHMENTS  

 
Exhibit “A’ – Bid Tabulation 

 





RESOLUTION NO. R–87-13 
 

 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A PURCHASE ORDER TO 

SOUTHEASTERN EQUIPMENT CO, INC. FOR THE PURCHASE 
OF A BACKHOE FOR THE PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT  

 
 
 WHEREAS, the Piqua Public Works Department desires to purchase a new backhoe; 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Piqua provided for the purchase of a new backhoe in the 2013 
budget appropriations; 
 
 WHEREAS, the purchase will be made using State of Ohio index # STS-515 and contract  
# 800185-5 with Southeastern Equipment Co., Inc.’s quote being shown on Exhibit “A” attached 
hereto;   
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami 
County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: A purchase order is hereby authorized to Southeastern Equipment Co., Inc. 
for the purchase of a backhoe according to the bid specifications and quote received; 
 
 SEC. 2: The Finance Director certifies funds are available and is hereby authorized to 
draw her warrants from time to time on the appropriate account of the city treasury in payment 
according to contract terms, not exceeding a total of $103,135.00; 
 
 SEC. 3: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after the earliest 
period allowed by law. 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



 

Item # 8
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

 
MEETING DATE 

 

 
June 4, 2013 

 
REPORT TITLE 

 
 

 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A PURCHASE ORDER TO 
SOUTHEASTERN EQUIPMENT CO, INC. FOR THE PURCHASE OF A 
BACKHOE FOR THE PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT  
 

 
SUBMITTED BY 

Name & Title: Doug Harter, Public Works Director 
Department: Public Works Department 

 
AGENDA CLASSIFICATION 

 

 
Consent 

 
Ordinance 

 
Resolution 

 
Regular 

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 
Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 
Department Director Other:  

 
BACKGROUND 

 

 
Our previous backhoe was traded towards the purchase of a new leaf machine. 
 

 
BUDGETING AND 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 

Budgeted $:  $103,135.00 for the 2013 year 
Expenditure $:  $103,095.00 per our quote  
Source of Funds: 101-113-850-8805 
 
Narrative:  

 
The Department has asked for a new backhoe to assist our 
employees with many street projects.  It can be used to do 
base repairs, Parks projects, and assist in operations at the 
compost facility.  
 

 
OPTIONS 

 

1. Approve Resolution No. R-87-13 as presented. 
2. Approve Resolution No. R-87-13 with changes. 
3. Deny Resolution No. R-87-13 and offer staff an alternative. 

 
 PROJECT TIMELINE 

 
Our new backhoe would be ordered right away and delivery would be expected 
within 30-90 days.  We would anticipate having the backhoe in September. 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
 

 
We support the passage of this Resolution so that we can increase output in our 
day to day operations, without having to rent equipment. 

 
ATTACHMENTS  

 
Exhibit “A” – Southeastern Equipment Co., Inc. Quote 
Exhibit “B” – Capital Purchase Approval Form 
 

 









RESOLUTION NO. R-88-13  
 
 

A RESOLUTION FIXING THE TIME AND 
PLACE FOR A PUBLIC HEARING ON THE 

PROPOSED CITY TAX BUDGET FOR 
MIAMI COUNTY FOR THE CALENDAR 

YEAR 2014 AND DRAFT APPROPRIATION 
ORDINANCE 

 
 

WHEREAS, Section 5705.18 of the Revised Code requires that this 
Commission adopt a tax budget for the next succeeding year on or before July 15th; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, Charter Section 49 requires the submission of the draft of an 
appropriation ordinance based upon said budget; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, 
that: 
 

SEC. 1: A public hearing on the proposed city tax budget for Miami 
County for the year 2014 and draft appropriation ordinance shall be held at the next 
regular meeting of this Commission on June 18, 2013 at 7:30 P.M.; and 

  
SEC. 2: The Commission Clerk is hereby directed to cause the 

publication of notice of said public hearing in the Piqua Daily Call; 
 

 SEC. 3: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 
 

      ____________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
   
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



RESOLUTION NO. R-89-13 

A RESOLUTION REQUESTING AUTHORIZATION 
TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH 

STRAND ASSOCIATES, INC. FOR THE SITE 
SELECTION, DESIGN, PERMITTING, AND 

CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING FOR A NEW 1.0 
MILLION GALLON ELEVATED WATER 

STORAGE TOWER   
 

 WHEREAS, The City of Piqua acknowledges the need for a new Elevated 
Water Storage Tower in the central pressure zone; and 

 WHEREAS, the services from Strand Associates, Inc. will include the site 
selection, design, EPA plan approval, construction engineering & inspection, and 
all required permits, of a new 1.0 million gallon Elevated Water Storage Tower; 
and 

WHEREAS, after solicitation of Statement of Qualifications (SOQ’s), 
Strand Associates, Inc. has been determined to be the most qualified provider of 
these services; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto 
concurring, that 

 SEC. 1: A purchase order is hereby authorized to Strand Associates, 
Inc. for the detailed design, construction cost are scheduled to be included in the 
2014 budget; 

 SEC. 2: The Finance Director certifies that funds are available and is 
hereby authorized to draw her warrants from time to time on the appropriate 
account of the city treasury in payment according to contract terms, not 
exceeding a total of; $249,750 

 SEC. 3: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and 
after the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
       _________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 

ATTEST:   _______________________ 
 REBECCA J. COOL   
 CLERK OF COMMISSION 



 

Item # 10
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

 
MEETING DATE 

 

 
June 4, 2013 

 
REPORT TITLE 

(Should match resolution/ordinance 
title) 

 

A Resolution requesting authorization to enter into an agreement with Strand 
Associates, Inc. for a new 1.0 million gallon elevated water storage tower. This 
will include site selection, detailed design, EPA plan approval, construction 
engineering & inspection, bid documents and all other required permits.   

 
SUBMITTED BY 

Name & Title: Don Freisthler, Water Plant Superintendent 
Department: Water Department 

 
AGENDA CLASSIFICATION 

 

 
Consent 

 
Ordinance 

 
Resolution 

 
Regular 

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 
Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 
Department Director  Other:  

 
BACKGROUND 

(Includes description, background, 
and justification) 

 

 
Currently there are two 250,000 gallon storage towers in the central pressure 
zone. They were built in 1951 and were designed for the needs at that time. This 
was prior to Piqua’s growth and need to develop three pressure zones. 
 
The results of the necessary zoning of the distribution system left the downtown 
towers with overflow elevations much lower than Ash ST., and R M Davis 
towers. Leaving the downtown towers inoperable unless there is a major fire or 
main break. 
 
The THM’s (disinfectant by-products) in the South end of the City are elevated 
due to the water age, since these areas actually feed from the higher towers. 
 
The new tower will address these issues.   
 

 
BUDGETING AND 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
(Includes project costs and funding 

sources) 

Budgeted $:  $180,000 Detail Design 
$45,000 Water Line design 
$ 24,750 11 % contingency 
Not to Exceed $249,750  

Source of Funds: 403-000-190-3242 
Narrative:  Detailed Design was budgeted for in the 2013 budget.  

Construction and engineering services will be in the 2014 
budget. 
 
This was the major deficiency noted in the Water 
Distribution System Master Plan by CDM / Smith in 2011 
 
The new tower will include a mixing system that will keep 



the water in this tower fresher, thus helping to lower the 
amount of THM ‘s. 
 
Better water pressure, fire flows and lower THM levels in 
the Central Pressure zone should be the result of installing 
the new tower. 
 
The new tower will also provide additional water for 
citizens and accommodate for future growth.   

 
OPTIONS 

(Include Deny /Approval Option) 
 
 

1. Approve the resolution to enter into an agreement with Strand Associate’s, 
Inc. for the Design and Construction Services of a new water tower.   

2. Don’t approve the resolution, continue having pressure issues, impacted 
fire flows, and possibly incur THM Violations in the future.  

 
PROJECT TIMELINE 

 

Two sites will be evaluated, once a site is selected, Strand will proceed with 
detailed design, obtain Ohio EPA approval and permitting. Construction is 
scheduled for spring of 2014. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
 

Staff recommends approval so project can proceed and correct 
the cited deficiencies.  

ATTACHMENTS  1. Strand – Scope of Service / Attachment A (City’s agreement) 

 













RESOLUTION NO. R-90-13 

A RESOLUTION AWARDING A CONTRACT FOR 
THE PURCHASE OF A REFUSE PACKER TRUCK 
       FOR THE SANITATION DEPARTMENT 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the present operations of the City require the purchase of a refuse 
packer truck for the Sanitation Department; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on January 15, 2013, the Commission passed Resolution No. R-6-13  
authorizing the City Purchasing Analyst to advertise for bids, according to law, for a refuse 
packer truck for the Sanitation Department; 
 
 WHEREAS, after proper advertisement, bids were opened resulting in the tabulation 
of bids as listed in Exhibit “A” attached hereto; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami 
County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 
 SEC. 1:  A contract for said refuse packer truck is hereby awarded to Stoops 
Freightliner as the lowest responsible bidder and the City Manager is hereby authorized to 
execute a contract with said bidder pursuant to contract specifications; 
 
 SEC. 2:  The Finance Director certifies funds are available is hereby 
authorized to draw her warrants from time to time on the appropriate account of the City 
treasury in payment according to contract terms, not exceeding a total of $ 125,586; 
 
 SEC. 3:  This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after the 
earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 
      ______________________________________
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:  _____________________ 
 
ATTEST:   _____________________ 
                  REBECCA J. COOL 
      CLERK OF COMMISSION 
  



 

Item #  11  
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

 
MEETING DATE 

 

 
June 4, 2013 

 
REPORT TITLE 

(Should match resolution/ordinance 
title) 

 

 
A Resolution awarding a contract for the purchase of a refuse packer truck for 
the Sanitation Department. 

 
SUBMITTED BY 

Name & Title: Amy Welker, Director of Health & Sanitation 
Department: Sanitation 

 
AGENDA CLASSIFICATION 

 

 
Consent 

 
Ordinance 

 
Resolution 

 
Regular 

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 
Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 
Department Director Other:       

 
BACKGROUND 

(Includes description, background, 
and justification) 

 

The Sanitation Department utilizes a fleet of trucks to perform the daily functions of the 
department.  This is a routine replacement of the oldest truck in the fleet, a 2000 International 
4900 truck and McNeilus packer body with over 100,000 miles. 

 
BUDGETING AND 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
(Includes project costs and funding 

sources) 

Budgeted $:  126,500 
Expenditure $:  125,586 
Source of Funds: Sanitation Fund reserves 
Narrative:  Selected bid is under budget, in addition, the City will 

receive $5,000 for our trade in vehicle. 
 

OPTIONS 
(Include Deny /Approval Option) 

 
 

1. Approve the purchase of the refuse truck 
2. Deny the purchase of the refuse truck and provide staff with further 

direction. 
3.  
4.  

 
PROJECT TIMELINE 

 

 
Truck approximate delivery in 130 days. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
 

 
Approval of the purchase of the refuse truck. 

ATTACHMENTS  Bid Tabulation 

 









RESOLUTION NO. R-91-13 
 

 
A RESOLUTION AWARDING A CONTRACT TO HD SUPPLY 
POWER SOLUTIONS FOR THE PURCHASE OF MATERIAL 

FOR THE POWER SYSTEM 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the present operations of the City require the purchase of 
material for the Power System; and 
 
 WHEREAS, after proper advertisement, bids were opened resulting in the 
tabulation of bids as listed in Exhibit “A” attached hereto;   
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, 
that: 
 

SEC. 1: A contract with HD Supply Power Solutions for the purchase of 
material is hereby approved as the best suitable option for said project and the City 
Manager is hereby authorized to execute a contract with said bidder pursuant to 
contract specifications;  
 
 SEC. 2: The Finance Director certifies funds are available and is 
hereby authorized to draw her warrants from time to time on the appropriate account 
of the city treasury in payment according to the contract terms, not exceeding a total 
of $101,575. 
 
 SEC. 3: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
          LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



 

 

 

 

AG

 

 

ME

RE

SU

GENDA CLA

APPROVA

BA

EETING DAT

EPORT TITL

UBMITTED B

ASSIFICATIO

ALS/REVIEW

ACKGROUN

 

 

E 

 

June 4, 2

E 

 

A RESO
SOLUTI
SYSTEM

Y 
Name &

Departm

N 
Conse

S 

City M

Asst. 

Depar

 
 

D 
 
 

 

On July
which a
Engineer
between
thirty-tw
approved
the purc
commiss
as a cont

Lastly, th
addition
system d
best bid.
for any u

 

 

Com
Staf
 
 
 
 

2013 

OLUTION A
ONS FOR 

M 

& Title: Nick

ment: Power 

ent 

Manager 

City Manag

rtment Direc

y 17, 2012, 
allowed the 
ring, Inc. (P

n substation 
wo (32) mai
d Resolution

chase of thir
sion approve
tractor for th

he power sy
al material 
determined 
.  We have a
unforeseen e

mmissi
ff Repo

AWARDING 
THE PURC

Berger, Ass

System 

Ordinanc

ger/Developm

ctor; Ed Krie

Piqua City
power syst

SE).  PSE p
4 and 5.  T

in-line pole
n R-30-13 aw
rty-two steel
ed Resolutio
he city to rep

ystem receive
for the pole
that HD Su
added a 10%
expenses. 

ion Ag
ort 

A CONTR
CHASE OF 

st. Power Sy

ce 

ment 

eger 

y Commissi
tem to acqu
performed an
The assessm
es.  On Ma
awarding a c
l transmissio

on R-71-13 a
place the thir

ed bids from
e replaceme

upply Power
% contingenc

genda  

RACT TO H
MATERIAL

ystem Directo

Resolution 

Asst. City M

Law Directo

Other: Ener

ion approve
uire the serv
n assessment

ment resulted
arch 5, 201
contract to B
on poles. On
acquiring the
rty-two pole

m four differe
ents on May
r Solutions p
cy to HD Su

Item 

          

HD SUPPLY
L FOR THE

or 

Re

Manager/Fin

or 

rgy Board 

ed Resolutio
vices of Po
t of the trans
d in the nee
3, the city 

Bridgewell R
n May 7, 20
e services of
s. 

ent vendors t
y 17, 2013. 
provided the
upply’s base 

# 12

 

Y POWER 
E POWER 

gular 

nance 

on R-106-12
ower System
smission line
ed to replace

commission
Resources fo
013, the city
f P&G Powe

to supply the
 The powe

e lowest and
bid to allow

2 
m 
e 
e 
n 
r 
y 
r 

e 
r 
d 
w 



 
BUDGETING AND 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 

Budgeted $:  $575,000 

Expenditure $:  $101,575 

Source of Funds: 190-3355 ($575,000) 

190-3392 ($300,000) 

Narrative:  Included in the 2013 power system’s budget is $575,000 to 
rebuild the transmission line between substation 4 and 5. 
The hardware package provided by HD Supply totals 
$101,575.  The total cost for this project which includes the 
steel poles from Bridgewell Resources, the services from 
P&G Power, and the hardware package from HD Supply is 
$752,391.  A planned $300,000 vehicle replacement will be 
delayed to 2014 to provide a source for the additional funds. 

 
OPTIONS 

 
 

1. Approve Resolution No. R-91-13 awarding a contract to HD Supply Power 
Solutions for the purchase of material at a cost not to exceed $101,575. 

2. Do not approve the Resolution and provide staff with further direction 
 

PROJECT TIMELINE 
 

HD Supply is scheduled to have the material trailer on-site the week of August 
5, 2013 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
 

Approve Resolution No. R-91-13 awarding a contract to HD Supply for the 
purchase of material at a cost not to exceed $101,575. 

ATTACHMENTS  1. Exhibit A – Bid Summary 

 



P
ro

je
ct

H
ar

dw
ar

e 
P

ac
ka

ge
 - 

Tr
an

sm
is

si
on

 L
in

e
B

id
 O

pe
ni

ng
Fr

id
ay

, M
ay

 1
7,

 2
01

3

C
om

pa
ny

Ad
dr

es
s

C
ity

St
at

e
Zi

p
To

ta
l B

id
H

D
 S

up
pl

y 
Po

w
er

 S
ol

ut
io

ns
PO

 B
ox

 6
02

6
H

illi
ar

d
O

H
43

02
6

92
,3

40
.9

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
P

ep
co

37
29

 B
oe

ttl
er

 O
ak

s 
D

r
G

re
en

O
H

44
23

2
10

0,
60

1.
60

$ 
   

   
   

  
P

&
G

 P
ow

er
16

 S
ou

th
 G

ra
ce

 S
t.

W
he

at
fie

ld
IN

46
39

2
13

0,
62

8.
00

$ 
   

   
   

  
P

ow
er

 L
in

e 
S

up
pl

y
14

03
 N

eu
br

ec
ht

 R
d

Li
m

a
O

H
45

80
1

In
co

m
pl

et
e



RESOLUTION NO. R–92-13 
 

 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A PURCHASE ORDER TO 
HORTON EMERGENCY VEHICLES COMPANY FOR THE 
PURCHASE OF A MEDIC FOR THE FIRE DEPARTMENT  

 
 
 WHEREAS, the Piqua Fire Department desires to purchase a new medic; 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Piqua provided for the purchase of a medic in the 2013 budget 
appropriations; 
 
 WHEREAS, the purchase will be made using State of Ohio index # STS-233X and contract  
# 7723300408 with Horton Emergency Vehicles Company’s quote being shown on Exhibit “A” 
attached hereto;   
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami 
County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: A purchase order is hereby authorized to Horton Emergency Vehicles 
Company for the purchase of a medic according to the bid specifications and quote received; 
 
 SEC. 2: The Finance Director certifies funds are available and is hereby authorized to 
draw her warrants from time to time on the appropriate account of the city treasury in payment 
according to contract terms, not exceeding a total of $215,000.00; 
 
 SEC. 3: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after the earliest 
period allowed by law. 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



 

Item # 13
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

 
MEETING DATE 

 

 
June 4, 2013 

 
REPORT TITLE 

 
 

 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A PURCHASE ORDER TO HORTON  
EMERGENCY VEHICLES COMPANY FOR THE PURCHASE OF A MEDIC 
FOR THE FIRE DEPARTMENT  
 

 
SUBMITTED BY 

Name & Title: Asst. Chief Brent Pohlschneider 
Department: Fire Department 

 
AGENDA CLASSIFICATION 

 

 
Consent 

 
Ordinance 

 
Resolution 

 
Regular 

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 
Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 
Department Director Other:  

 
BACKGROUND 

 

 
The Fire Department attempted to save money on a lesser duty chassis/box 
(Medic 9) unit in 2007.  Unfortunately, the lesser duty chassis has not been able 
to handle the harsh work load for the call volume that the Piqua Fire 
Department experiences.  Medic 9 has been out of service for a total of 31 days 
in the last 12 months for a multitude of mechanical break downs. This Medic 
used a total of 24% of the available vehicle maintenance budget in 2012 for a 
total of $8,243.33 in repair costs. The Medic had two breakdowns during 
emergency medical calls in 2012 with components under the hood catching fire.  
 
Prior to the City of Piqua billing for EMS services, the citizens of Piqua donated 
monies to the American Legion Ambulance Fund to replace medic units every 4 
years.  Due to the economic climate and depletion of escrow equipment 
replacement funds, we are now experiencing increased vehicle maintenance due 
to the aging fleet.  Our vehicle maintenance budget tripled in 2011 & 2012 and 
we are estimating it will be even higher in 2013.  If this purchase is approved, it 
will reduce the vehicle maintenance expenditures. 
 

 
BUDGETING AND 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 

Budgeted $:  $215,000 for the 2013 year 
Expenditure $:  $209,888.85 with a 2.3% contingency  
Source of Funds: 106-009-836-8805 
 
Narrative:  

 
The Department has asked for the medic to be quoted so that 
it will match our existing layouts.  We have also included 
the Freightliner Chassis for durability.  The contingency 
may be used if something is brought to our attention during 
the building of our unit that we may need to include. 
 



 
OPTIONS 

 

1. Approve Resolution No. R-92-13 as presented. 
2. Approve Resolution No. R-92-13 with changes. 
3. Deny Resolution No. R-92-13 and offer staff an alternative. 

 
 PROJECT TIMELINE 

 
Our new medic would be ordered right away and delivery would be expected 
within 180-210 days of receipt of the chassis.  We would anticipate having the 
medic in December of this year, with the possibility of it running into January. 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
 

 
We support the passage of this Resolution so that our services to the residents of 
Piqua will remain at the high level of personal care that they are accustomed to. 
 
We also contacted several references for Horton to ensure that our dollars are 
being spent wisely.  The medics they produced for other communities have 
received great reviews.  We didn’t just call the references they gave us, we 
contacted communities that have had their medics for several years.  We are in 
need of a medic that will perform as needed with very little maintenance issues 
and we believe Horton’s medics will do just that. 
 

 
ATTACHMENTS  

 
Exhibit “A” – Horton Emergency Vehicles Company Quote 
Exhibit “B” – Capital Purchase Approval Form 
 

 















1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. R- 93-13 
 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE LAW DIRECTOR TO PETITION THE 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF MIAMI COUNTY, OHIO FOR A 
CHANGE IN THE BOUNDARY LINES OF WASHINGTON TOWNSHIP 
 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami County, 
Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: Contingent upon the granting of the subject annexation and in 
accordance with the annexation agreement attached hereto as Exhibit ‘A’, the Law 
Director is hereby authorized on behalf of this Commission to present to the Board of 
County Commissioners of Miami County, Ohio, a petition requesting the changes in 
the boundary lines of Washington Township as may be necessary so that said 
township does not include the 45.503 acres proposed for annexation to the City of 
Piqua, as shown in the supporting documents attached hereto as Exhibit ‘B’. 

 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 
       __________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION



 

Item # 14 
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

MEETING DATE June 4, 2013 

REPORT TITLE 
(Match resolution/ordinance title) 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE LAW DIRECTOR TO PETITION 
THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF MIAMI COUNTY, 
OHIO FOR A CHANGE IN THE BOUNDARY LINES OF WASHINGTON 
TOWNSHIP 

SUBMITTED BY Chris Schmiesing, City Planner 

Development Department 

AGENDA CLASSIFICATION Consent Ordinance Resolution Regular 

APPROVALS/REVIEWS City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 

Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 

Utilities Department Director  Planning Commission  

BACKGROUND 
(Description, background, justification) 

This item is with reference to the City of Piqua and Washington Township 
annexation agreement.  Adoption of this Resolution will authorize the filing of a 
petition to change the boundaries of Washington Township upon the annexation 
of City of Piqua and State of Ohio properties located near State Route 66 and 
Hardin Road.   

The annexation agreement executed between the City of Piqua and Washington 
Township requires those areas of Washington Township annexed into the 
municipal corporation limits to be excluded from the township boundaries.  To 
effect this change a petition must be filed with the Miami County Board of 
Commissioners.   

BUDGET/FINANCIAL IMPACT 
(Project costs and funding sources) 

Budgeted $:  0 

Expenditure $:  200 +/- 

Source of Funds: Utilities Fund 

Narrative:  There are filing fees and recording fees that will need to be 
satisfied to process and finalize this request. 

OPTIONS 
(Include deny /approval option) 

1. Adopt the resolution to authorize the proposed boundary change contingent 
upon the annexation being approved. 



 2. Defeat the resolution to deny the proposed boundary change. 

PROJECT TIMELINE See attached project schedule 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION Authorize the proposed annexation. 

ATTACHMENTS Resolution (including annexation agreement, legal description, and map 
exhibits); Project Schedule 

 







EXHIBIT A 

 

 



EXHIBIT A 

 

 



EXHIBIT A 

 

 



EXHIBIT A 

 



EXHIBIT B 

 

 
45.503 ACRES 

 
Situated in the Township of Washington, County of Miami, State of Ohio; also being a part of Section 1, 
Town 8, Range 5 East and a part of Section 36, Town 9, Range 5 East and a part of Section 6, Town 6, 
Range 6 East; also being those lands as conveyed to City of Piqua as described in Official Record 225 
Page 484 and Official Record 232 Pages 795 through 818 and a tract of land owned by the City of Piqua 
(the former Piqua Hydraulic Feeder Canal) and a portion of those lands within the rights-of-way of State 
Route 66 (right-of-way varies) and Hardin Road No. 110 (60’ right-of-way) and Hardin Road Alternate 
(60’ right-of-way) and a portion of those lands as conveyed to State of Ohio as described in Deed Book 
426 Page 70; being more particularly described as follows: 
 
Commencing at the northeast corner of Section 1, Town 8, Range 5 East, said point also being along the 
southerly line of Lot 1 of Northwood Hills Subdivision Section One as recorded in Plat Book 10 Page 13, 
said point also being along the northerly line of a 2.6768 acre tract as conveyed to Carl D. & Michele L. 
Hutcherson as described in Official Record 45 Page 453; thence, 
 
Along the division line between Section 1, Town 8, Range 5 East and Section 36, Town 9, Range 5 East, 
also being along the southerly lines of said Lot 1 and then along the southerly line of Lot 21 and then 
along a portion of the southerly line of Lot 22 of Northwood Hills Subdivision Section 2 as recorded in 
Plat Book 10 Page 95, also being along a portion of the northerly line of said 2.6768 acre tract, North 89º 
40’ 39” West for a distance of 367.17’ to a point, said point being the northwesterly corner of said 2.6768 
acre tract, said point also being the TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING, and from said beginning point 
running thence, 
 
Along the westerly line of said 2.6768 acre tract, South 0° 03' 26"East, for a distance of 223.26' to the 
southwesterly corner of said 2.6768 acre tract; thence, 
 
Along the southerly line of said 2.6768 acre tract, North 89° 56' 34"East, for a distance of 471.26' to a 
point along the centerline of Hardin Road No. 110 (60’ right-of-way); thence, 
 
Along the centerline of Hardin Road No. 110, North 30° 02' 53"East, for a distance of 74.47' to a point; 
thence, 
 
Along the centerline of Hardin Road No. 110, North 14° 34' 50"East, for a distance of 160.40' to a point 
along the northerly line of Section 6, Township 6, Range 6 East; thence, 
 
Along the northerly line of said Section 6, South 89° 40' 39"East, for a distance of 30.95' to a point 
along the easterly line of Hardin Road No. 110, said point also being along the division line between the 
City of Piqua and Washington Township; thence the following 8 courses along the easterly right-of-way 
line of Hardin Road No. 110 and the division line between the City of Piqua and Washington Township, 
 
South 14° 34' 50"West, for a distance of 172.10' to a point; thence, 
 
South 30° 02' 53"West, for a distance of 828.21' to a point; thence, 
 
South 33° 23' 13"West, for a distance of 310.44' to a point; thence, 
 
South 31° 28' 33"West, for a distance of 167.15' to a point; thence, 
 
South 18° 18' 04"West, for a distance of 313.51' to a point; thence, 
 



EXHIBIT B 

 

Along a curve to the left, said curve being non-tangent to the previous course, said curve having a radius 
of 3407.75’, an arc length of 213.12’, a central angle of 3º 35’ 00”, and a chord that beard South 16º 
30’ 34” West for a distance of 213.09’ to a point; thence, 
 
South 15° 54' 28"East, for a distance of 48.21' to a point; thence, 
 
South 10° 18' 16"West, for a distance of 207.00' to a point along the northerly right-of-way line of State 
Route No. 66 (right-of-way varies) and along the division line between the City of Piqua and Washington 
Township; thence, 
 
Along the northerly right-of-way line of State Route No. 66, also being along the division line between 
the City of Piqua and Washington Township, South 17° 21' 48"East, for a distance of 473.81' to a point; 
thence, 
 
Along the same, South 24° 38' 18"East, for a distance of 111.95' to a point along a southerly line of a 
162.823 acre tract as conveyed to State of Ohio as described in Deed Book 426 Page 70; thence, 
 
Along a portion of a southerly line of said 162.823 acre tract and then along the extension of said 
southerly line, South 65° 28' 57"West, for a distance of 90.00' to a point along the centerline of State 
Route No. 66; thence, 
 
Along the centerline of State Route No. 66, also being along the division line between the City of Piqua 
and Washington Township starting at a distance of 549.67’ from the beginning of this course, North 24° 
38' 18"West, for a distance of 2243.10' to a point of curvature; thence, 
 
Along the centerline of State Route No. 66, also being along the division line between the City of Piqua 
and Washington Township, following a curve to the left having a radius of 5729.58’, an arc length of 
789.87, a central angle of 7º 53’ 55”, and a chord that bears North 28º 35’ 16” West for a distance of 
789.24’ to a point at the intersection of the centerlines of State Route No. 66 and Hardin Road Alternate; 
thence, 
 
Along the centerline of Hardin Road Alternate, South 54° 09' 29"East, for a distance of 444.05' to a 
point; thence, 
 
Along the centerline of Hardin Road Alternate, South 54° 11' 39"East, for a distance of 289.80' to a 
point, said point being the southeasterly corner of a 1.026 acre tract as conveyed to Warren O. Price, Jr. & 
Marilyn J. Price, Trustees as described in Deed Book 729 Page 233; thence, 
 
Along the easterly line of said 1.026 acre tract, North 1° 09' 46"West, for a distance of 334.79' to a point 
along the southerly line of a 25.078 acre tract as conveyed to John M. & Deborah Owsiniany as described 
in Official Record 284 Page 791, said point also being along the division line between Section 1, Town 8, 
Range 5 East and Section 36, Town 9, Range 5 East; thence, 
 
Along a portion of the southerly line of said 25.0783 acre tract and then along a portion of the southerly 
line of Lot 22 of Northwood Hills Subdivision Section 2, also being along the division line between 
Section 1, Town 8, Range 5 East and Section 36, Town 9, Range 5 East, South 89° 40' 39"East, for a 
distance of 937.26' to the point of beginning containing 45.503 acres of land, more or less, of which 
44.881 acres is in Section 1, Town 8, Range 5 East, 0.549 acres is in Section 6, Town 6, Range 6 East, 
and 0.073 acres is in Section 36, Town 9, Range 5 East; as determined by Michael L. Keller, Professional 
Surveyor, Ohio License No. 7978, based on a survey performed by Kleingers & Associates in June, 2011 
and September, 2012, as filed in Miami County Recorder’s Record of Plats Volume _______ Page 
_______. 
 



EXHIBIT B 

 

Basis of bearings for the above-described courses is the Ohio State Plane Coordinate System, Ohio South 
Zone (NAD83-2007) as determined by a VRS-GPS survey utilizing CORS station “SIDN” as maintained 
by the Ohio Department of Transportation and station “MIA 099”. 
 
Iron pins set are 5/8” diameter rebar, 30” in length, with plastic identifier caps stamped “Kleingers & 
Assoc”. 
 
Subject to any easements, restrictions, covenants, ordinances, or agreements of record. 
 
Legal description prepared by Michael L. Keller, Professional Surveyor, Ohio License No. 7978 



E
XH

IB
IT

 B
 

 
 



RESOLUTION NO. R-94-13 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A LOAN AGREEMENT 
WITH VESTCO, LTD., IN THE AMOUNT OF $30,000 

WHEREAS, on August 5, 2009, the City of Piqua was a recipient of a $90,000 
grant from the United States Department of Agriculture’s Rural Business Enterprise 
Grant to establish a revolving loan fund for the purposes of increasing economic 
opportunities for industrial and commercial concerns within the City of Piqua; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Piqua has received an application for a loan from 
the revolving loan fund from Vestco, Ltd. and  

WHEREAS, the application has been deemed to be complete and is 
recommended for approval by the City Commission; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that 

 SEC. 1:  The Finance Director certifies funds are available and is 
hereby authorized to draw her warrants from time to time on the appropriate account of the 
city treasury in payment according to the terms of the loan, an amount not exceeding a 
total of $30,000; 

 SEC. 2:  The City shall submit and execute all necessary 
documentation with Vestco, Ltd. and the United States Department of Agriculture to 
facilitate the execution of the loan agreement; 

 SEC. 3:  This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and 
after the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
       _________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 

ATTEST:   _______________________ 
 REBECCA J. COOL   
 CLERK OF COMMISSION 

 



 

Item #15 
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

 
MEETING DATE 

 

 
June 4, 2013 

 
REPORT TITLE 

(Should match resolution/ordinance 
title) 

 

A Resolution Authorizing the Execution of a Loan Agreement with Vestco, Ltd. in the 
amount of $30,000 
 

 
SUBMITTED BY 

Name & Title:  William Lutz, Development Program Manager 
Department: Development 

 
AGENDA CLASSIFICATION 

 

 
Consent 

 
Ordinance 

 
X  Resolution 

 
Regular 

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

   City Manager    Asst. City Manager/Finance 
X  Asst. City Manager/Development    Law Director 
X  Department Director;     Other:  

 
BACKGROUND 

(Includes description, background, 
and justification) 

 

 
In 2009, the City of Piqua received a $90,000 grant from the United States 
Department of Agriculture to establish a revolving loan fund for economic 
development purposes.  In the first year after receiving the grant, we entered 
into two grant agreements and both companies are doing well and are current 
on payment.  At this point, we have over $32,000 that has come back into the 
fund to loan out to other businesses. 
 
The Development Department has received a request from Vestco, Ltd.  Vestco, 
Ltd. is a small business that provides home based skilled and non-skilled home 
health care for their clients.  The business has two existing locations in 
Montgomery County and they are looking to start a new office in the northern 
Miami Valley and this company chose Piqua. 
 
The company has a contract to purchase the property at 423 N. Wayne St.  The 
funds from this loan will be used to help rehabilitate the property in order to 
make the property meet the business’ needs.  The use of the funds is allowed by 
the United States Department of Agriculture.  Additionally, the business pledges 
to create two jobs, which is a requirement of the loan program. 
 
The loan will be for seven years at a three percent interest rate.  The monthly 
payment for the business will be $406.40.  The loan will be secured by a 
mortgage on the property.   
 
 
 

 
BUDGETING AND 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
(Includes project costs and funding 

sources) 

Budgeted $:  $30,000 
Expenditure $:  $30,000 
Source of Funds:  Fund 142:  USDA Revolving Loan Fund 
Narrative:  In 2009, the City of Piqua received a $90,000 grant from 



the United States Department of Agriculture to establish a 
revolving loan fund.   

 
OPTIONS 

(Include Deny /Approval Option) 
 
 

1. Approve the loan agreement with Vestco, Ltd. 
2. Deny the loan agreement with Vestco, Ltd. and risk not having the business 

establish in the City of Piqua. 
3.  
4.  

 
PROJECT TIMELINE 

 

Upon adoption of this loan agreement, a closing will occur within ten days and 
the loan recipient is ready to begin their project shortly after closing. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
 

Staff recommends that the City Commission approve the loan agreement.   

ATTACHMENTS   

 




